
 

AGENDA FOR 
 
PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE 

 

 
Contact:: Michael Cunliffe 

Direct Line: 0161 253 5399 
E-mail: m.cunliffe@bury.gov.uk 
Web Site:  www.bury.gov.uk 

 
 

To: All Members of Planning Control Committee 
 

Councillors : G McGill (Chair), S Briggs, T Cummings, 

S Haroon, J Harris, M Hayes, G Keeley, J Mason, 
B Mortenson, I Schofield, C Tegolo, K Thomas and 

D.Vernon 
 

 
Dear Member/Colleague 
 

Planning Control Committee 
 

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Planning Control 
Committee which will be held as follows:- 
 

Date: Tuesday, 15 December 2020 

Place:  Virtual meeting via Microsoft Teams 

Time: 7.00 pm 

Briefing 

Facilities: 

If Opposition Members and Co-opted Members require 

briefing on any particular item on the Agenda, the 
appropriate Director/Senior Officer originating the 

related report should be contacted. 

Notes: 
https://www.mycouncil.tv/burycouncil/ 

Public Document Pack

https://www.mycouncil.tv/burycouncil/


AGENDA 
 
 

1   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 

2   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 

Members of the Planning Control Committee are asked to consider 
whether they have an interest in any of the matters on the Agenda and, if 
so, to formally declare that interest. 

 

3   MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 10TH NOVEMBER 2020  

(Pages 3 - 6) 
 
Minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday the 10th November 2020 are 

attached. 
 

4   PLANNING APPLICATIONS  (Pages 7 - 44) 
 
Reports attached. 

 

5   DELEGATED DECISIONS  (Pages 45 - 58) 

 
A Report from the Head of Development Management on all delegated 
planning decisions since the last meeting of the Planning Control 

Committee is attached. 
 

6   PLANNING APPEALS  (Pages 59 - 66) 
 
A report from the Head of Development Management on all Planning 

appeal decisions since the last meeting of the Planning Control Committee 
is attached. 

 

7   URGENT BUSINESS   
 

Any other business which by reason of special circumstances the Chair 
agrees may be considered as a matter of urgency. 

 



 

 
1 

 
 Minutes of: PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE 

 
 Date of Meeting: 10 November 2020 

 

 Present: Councillor G McGill (in the Chair) 
Councillors S Briggs, T Cummings, J Harris, M Hayes, 

G Keeley, J Mason, B Mortenson, I Schofield, C Tegolo and 
D.Vernon 
 

 Also in 
attendance: 

Councillors R Cathcart and M. Smith 
 

 
 Public Attendance: 

 
Two members of the public were present virtually at the 
meeting. 

 
 Apologies for Absence: 

 

 Councillor S Haroon and Councillor K Thomas 

 

 

PCC.1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors S Haroon and K 

Thomas. 
  

PCC.2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

There were no declarations of interest made at the meeting. 

 

PCC.3  MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 6TH OCTOBER 2020  

 
Delegated decision: 
 

That the Minutes of the meeting held on the 6th October 2020 be approved as a 
correct record and signed by the Chair.  

 

PCC.4  PLANNING APPLICATIONS  

 
A report from the Head of Development Management was submitted in relation to 
various applications for planning permission.  

 
Supplementary information was also submitted in respect of application number 

65354. 
 
The Committee heard representations from applicants and/or objectors in respect 

of the applications submitted. This was limited to three minutes for each speaker. 
  

Councillors R Cathcart and M Smith spoke as Ward Representatives in relation to 
planning application 65354. 
 

Delegated decisions: 
 

1. That the Committee Approve with Conditions the following applications in 
accordance with the reasons put forward by the Development Manager in the 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Planning Control Committee, 10 November 2020  

 
 

 
2 

report and any supplementary information submitted and subject to the 
conditions included:- 

 

65354        Radcliffe Metrolink Car Park, Spring Lane, Radcliffe,  
Manchester, M26 2ST 

 
The erection of an additional deck and ramp to form a second floor to car park, 
providing an additional 111 no. spaces; landscaping scheme and lighting. 

 
65465        Whitefield Metrolink, Stanley Road, Whitefield, Manchester, 

M45 8AB 
 
Reconfiguration of the bus turning head and the erection of an additional deck and 

ramp to form a second floor to car park, providing in total an additional 123 no. 
spaces; landscaping scheme and lighting. 

 
65650  281 Bury Old Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 1JA 
 

Change of from public house (Class A4) to restaurant (Class A3) 
 

65821 St Josephs RC Primary School, Queen Street, Ramsbottom, 
Bury, BL0 9JJ 

 

Replacement of existing steel railings to Thelma Avenue, Queen Street, Garnett 
Street and the car park with 1800mm high 358 (Green) powder coated weldmesh 

fence panels including raising of piers to enhance safeguarding measures 
 

PCC.5  DELEGATED DECISIONS  

 
A report from the Head of Development Management was submitted listing all 

recent planning application decisions made by Officers using delegated powers. 
 

Delegated decision: 
 
That the report and appendices be noted.  

 

PCC.6  PLANNING APPEALS  

 
A report from the Head of Development Management was submitted listing all 
recent planning appeal decisions since the last meeting of the Planning Control 

Committee.   
 

Delegated decision: 
 
That the report and appendices be noted.  

 

PCC.7  URGENT BUSINESS  

 
No urgent business was reported. 
 

 
 

Page 4



 Planning Control Committee, 10 November 2020 

 
 

 
3 

 
 
COUNCILLOR G MCGILL 

Chair  
 

(Note:  The meeting started at 7.00pm, and ended at 8.15pm) 
 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



Title Planning Applications

To: Planning Control Committee

On: 15 December 2020

By: Development Manager

Status: For Publication

Executive Summary

The attached reports present members with a description of various planning applications, the
results of consultations, relevant policies, site history and issues involved.

My recommendations in each case are given in the attached reports.

This report has the following implications

Township Forum/ Ward: Identified in each case.

Policy: Identified in each case.

Resources: Not generally applicable.

Equality Act 2010: All planning applications are considered in light of the Equality Act 2010 and
associated Public Sector Equality Duty, where the Council is required to have due regard for:
The elimination of discrimination, harassment and victimisation;
The advancement of equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and person who do not share it;
The fostering of good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic
and person who do not share it; which applies to people from the protected equality groups.  

Human Rights: All planning applications are considered against the provisions of the Human
Rights Act 1998.

Under Article 6 the applicants (and those third parties who have made representations) have the
right to a fair hearing and to this end full consideration will be given to their comments.

Article 8 and Protocol 1 of the First Article confer a right to respect private and family life and a
right to the protection of property, ie peaceful enjoyment of one's possessions which could
include a person's home, and other land and business assets.

In taking account of the Council policy as set out in the Bury Unitary Development Plan 1997 and
all material planning considerations, I have concluded on balance that the rights conferred upon
the applicant/ objectors/ residents/ other interested party by Article 8 and Article 1 of the First
Protocol may be interfered with, since such interference is in accordance with the law and is
justified in the public interest. Any restriction of these rights posed by refusal/ approval of the
application is legitimate since it is proportionate to the wider benefits of such a decision, is based

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



upon the merits of the proposal, and falls within the margin of discretion afforded to the Council
under the Town & Country Planning Acts.

The Crime and Disorder Act 1998 imposes (without prejudice to any other obligation imposed on
it) a duty upon the Council to exercise its functions and have due regard to the likely effect of the
exercise of its functions on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent crime and
disorder in its area. In so doing and on making planning decisions under the Town and Country
Planning Acts, the Planning Control Committee shall have due regard to the provisions of the
Crime and Disorder Act 1998 and its implications in the exercise of its functions.

Development Manager

Background Documents

1. The planning application forms and plans submitted therewith.
2. Certificates relating to the ownership.
3. Letters and Documents from objectors or other interested parties.
4. Responses from Consultees.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION ON THE CONTENTS OF EACH REPORT PLEASE CONTACT
INDIVIDUAL CASE OFFICERS IDENTIFIED IN EACH CASE.

Page 8



01  Township Forum - Ward:  Radcliffe - East App No.  65015

 Location: Land at Morris Street, Radcliffe
 Proposal: Construction of 25 no. dwellings with associated access, landscaping and

ancillary works
 Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions  Site Visit: N

        ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
02  Township Forum - Ward:  Bury East - Redvales App No.  66066

 Location: 55A Horne Street, Bury, BL9 9BW
 Proposal: Variation of conditions following approval of planning application 45319.

Changes to condition 3 to extend opening hours Sunday to Thursday until
22:30 and Friday to Saturday until 23:00

 Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions  Site Visit: N

        ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Page 9



Page No 1

Ward: Radcliffe - East Item  01

Applicant: The Averill Group

Location: Land at Morris Street, Radcliffe

Proposal: Construction of 25 no. dwellings with associated access, landscaping and ancillary
works

Application Ref:  65015/Full Target Date: 28/04/2020

Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions

Description
Prior to the commencement of the flood defence works, the site consisted of open land to
the south of Morris Street. As part of the flood defence works, an earth bund and a wall
have been constructed on the perimeter of the site by the Environment Agency. Currently
the site is being used as the compound for the construction of the Radcliffe and Redvales
flood defence scheme until the works are completed in June 2021.

There are residential properties to the north, east and west of the site and the River Irwell is
located to the south.

The proposed development involves the erection of 25 dwellings. The proposed dwellings
would be a mix of semi-detached and detached properties and would be two storeys in
height. The proposed development would be constructed from brick with grey concrete
tiles. The proposed dwellings would be constructed behind the recently constructed flood
defence by the Environment Agency. The access would be taken from Morris Street.

Relevant Planning History
55583 - Erection of 14 no. three-storey dwellings with raised gardens, including extension
to Morris Street and associated pedestrian footpaths at land off Morris Street, Radcliffe.
Approved with conditions - 30 September 2013.

63559 - A series of sheet piled walls and embankments, on land within Close Park and land
to the south of Morris Street, which form part of a wider scheme to improve flood protection
along the River Irwell at land to south of Morris Street & land within Close Park, Radcliffe.
Approved with conditions - 28 March 2019.

64801 - Redesign of the previously approved flood defence bund to provide sheet piled wall
and bund at land at Morris Street, Radcliffe. Withdrawn - 22 July 2000.

65020 - Retention of a construction compound, consisting of site cabins, cycle store and
car parking, until completion of flood defence works in June 2021 at land to south of Morris
Street, Radcliffe. Approved with conditions - 11 February 2020.

Adjacent sites
63559 - A series of sheet piled walls and embankments, on land within Close Park and land
to the south of Morris Street, which form part of a wider scheme to improve flood protection
along the River Irwell. - Approve with Conditions 28/03/2019

64788 - Erection of retaining walls & sheet piled walls between 1m & 3m in height to form a
flood defence between the metrolink bridge and Warth Bridge at land to south of Warth
Industrial Estate, Warth Road, Bury. Approved with conditions - 17 December 2019

64789 - Erection of walls between 1.5m & 3.5m in height to form a flood defence at land to

Page 10



Page No 2

south of Central Avenue & Keswick Drive, Bury. Approved with conditions - 17 December
2019

64790 - Proposal A - A series of sheet piled walls and concrete walls across 4 sites
Proposal B - Erection of an embankment and retaining wall at land to west of Metrolink line
at Warth Road at land to west of Metrolink line at Warth Road; Land to west of Bury Road;
Land to east of Whitefield Road; Land to west of Hardy's Gate Bridge and Land to north of
York Street, Bury. Split decision - 22 January 2020.

65171 - Various flood defence proposals including sheet piled walls, concrete L-walls and
earth embankments, finished in a manner consistent with the local aesthetic at land to west
of Metrolink line at Warth Road; Land to west of Bury Road; Land to east of Whitefield
Road; Land to west of Hardy's Gate Bridge and Land to north of York Street, Bury.
Approved with conditions - 28 July 2020

Publicity
The neighbouring properties were notified by means of a letter on 30 January and a press
notice was published on 6 February 2020. Site notices were posted on 3 February 2020.

An e-mail has been received from Councillor Cathcart, which has raised the following
issues:

In 2008 Weetwood Engineering and the Environment Agency highlighted the significant
flooding that could happen to Morris Street if the Hardy's Gate Development went
ahead. This has proven to be one of the most costly developments to Bury MBC and
continues to be a site of significant risk following the river breach in 2020.
Whilst i do not object to affordable social housing, this site is not appropriate for
development.
No plans were submitted for residents to consider.
This is an application from a property developer with no experience of developing land
and this site should not be a testing ground.
It is a high risk scheme that will put pressure on an already overloaded water system
that regularly causes surface water run off and localised flooding due to inefficient water
mains utility infrastructure failing.

13 letters have been received from the occupiers of 2, 9, 12 Morris Street, 168, 172, 200,
206 Dumers Lane, 18, 23 Parkside Close, 37 Dumers Chase, 52 Hawthorn Crescent, 4
Sunningdale Close, Bury, 64 Riverside Drive, Stoneclough, which have raised the following
issues:

As a resident of Morris Street, I strongly object to the proposal.
After the events of December 2015 and the flooding of my property, I cannot believe
that the Council is considering an application for houses on the flood plain.
The houses that were built on the old halls factory site have been raised above us and
subsequently do not flood, but this is at our expense.
Radcliffe has an influx of housing with no new infrastructure and no schools for high
school children. Why keep adding more people to the area?
Radcliffe and Redvales Flood Action Group which represents over 200 households in
Radcliffe would like to express concerns about this development.
My property flooded in 2015 and I fear that this will add to our current problems and
cause more issues.
In February 2020, the river rose to dangerous levels and the contractors building the
flood defences used their equipment to build a makeshift wall to prevent the flow of
water onto Morris Street and the surrounding area.
There are many flood plains in the area which have already been questionably used for
property development. It is risky and foolhardy to continue down this path. Residents
are scared for their homes, safety, families and wellbeing
We have lived in the area for a year and regularly see standing water on this land.
No defences are being built to protect the homes on Riverside Drive, Stoneclough and
these properties were flooded again in February 2020. Any development that adds to
the risk for any properties downstream should never be approved.

Page 11



Page No 3

I have no doubt that the planning department will mark this application as “minded to
approve” as this generally appears to be the case for Bury Planning Department.
Personally I have serious concerns about this application as it would appear that
according to the Government’s own website containing “long term flood-risk information”
areas on the proposed development site have a “high risk of flooding from rivers” which
is defined as "High risk means that each year this area has a chance of flooding of
greater than 3.3%"
I assume that the argument will be made that with the implementation of the new flood
defences currently being funded by the Environment Agency this risk will be reduced to
an acceptable level.
My concerns in relation to this assumption is that the flood defences were not designed
to protect this particular area as it is not currently designated as a residential area and
secondly the danger with the implementation of any flood defence is that by protecting
one area from flood risk you can unintentionally transfer the flood risk back up stream to
an area that currently is not designated as high flood risk.
In relation to the previous development at Hardy’s Gate I note that it would appear none
or very few of the recommendations for flood mitigation detailed in the attached report
were actually implemented before the development at Hardy’s Gate was built. Instead
the Council and developers relied on the claim that the risk of flooding for this site was a
one in one hundred year event. This assumption has since been proved to be a
ridiculous under estimate of the risk since some residents have been flooded 3 times in
five years.
I would also question why the Council ignored the advice of the Helen Telfer, The
Planning Liaison Officer from the Environment Agency when she suggests that “We are
not convinced that the level of information in this section strictly follows the principles of
the sequential test”
Are the planning department convinced that the flood defences currently being built are
actually designed to reduce this risk to an acceptable level or is it in fact the case that
this land is actually designed to act as a flood plain?
While I am certainly not opposed to the provision of much needed affordable housing in
Radcliffe this should not be done at the cost of the stress and trauma of being flooded
for other residents.

The neighbouring properties and objectors were notified of revised plans on 19 August
2020.
No further comments were received.

The neighbouring properties and objectors were notified of revised plans on 17 November
2020.
No further comments were received.

Statutory/Non-Statutory Consultations
Traffic Section - Comments to be reported in the Supplementary Report.
Drainage Section - No response.
Environmental Health - Contaminated Land - Require updated desk top study
No objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to contaminated land.
Environmental Health - Air Quality -No objections, subject to the inclusion of condition
relating to electric vehicle charging points.
Waste Management - No response.
Environment Agency - No objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to
finished floor levels, landscaping and invasive species.
Designforsecurity - No objections, subject to the inclusion of a condition.
United Utilities - No objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to foul and
surface water drainage.
The Coal Authority - No objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to coal
mining.
GM Ecology Unit - No objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to otters,
nesting birds, invasive species, site clearance and landscaping.

Page 12



Page No 4

Pre-start Conditions - Applicant/Agent has agreed with pre-start conditions

Unitary Development Plan and Policies
EC2/1 Employment Generating Areas
H1/2 Further Housing Development
H2/1 The Form of New Residential Development
H2/2 The Layout of New Residential Development
H4/1 Affordable Housing
EN1/1 Visual Amenity
EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design
EN1/3 Landscaping Provision
EN5/1 New Development and Flood Risk
EN6 Conservation of the Natural Environment
EN6/3 Features of Ecological Value
EN7 Pollution Control
EN7/1 Atmospheric Pollution
EN7/2 Noise Pollution
EN7/5 Waste Water Management
OL5/3 Riverside and Canalside Development in Urban Areas
RT1/1 Protection of Recreation Provision in the Urban Area
RT2/2 Recreation Provision in New Housing Development
HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development
HT5/1 Access For Those with Special Needs
HT6/2 Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict
SPD1 Open Space, Sport and Recreation Provision
SPD5 DC Policy Guidance Note 5: Affordable Housing
SPD6 Supplementary Planning Document 6: Alterations & Extensions
SPD11 Parking Standards in Bury
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

Issues and Analysis
The following report includes analysis of  the merits of the application against the relevant
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be
specifically mentioned.

Principle (Employment) - Policy EC2/1 states that within Employment Generating Areas
(EGA), the Council will only allow development for business (B1), general industrial (B2)
and warehousing (B8). Other uses will only be permitted where they constitute limited
development or do not substantially detract from an area's value as an EGA.

The wider EGA - development by Bellway and Persimmon reprovided for the employment.
This site is now only a small fraction of the EGA. The issue is whether this small amount of
development is required to re-provide for employment. Given it's scale and location, it would
not detract given the amount of development that has been carried out and implemented.
Therefore, the proposed development would not substantially detract from the value of the
EGA and would be in accordance from Polict EC2/1 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.

Principle (Residential) - The National Planning Policy Framework should be treated as a
material planning consideration and it emphasises the need for local planning authorities to
boost the supply of housing to meet local housing targets in both the short and long term.
There is a particular emphasis, as in previous national planning guidance, to identify a
rolling five year supply of deliverable housing land.

Page 13



Page No 5

Bury's Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment sets out the latest housing supply
position, which is made up with sites that have an extant planning permission and sites that
have potential to obtain planning permission in the future. This shows that there are a
number of sites within the Borough with the potential to deliver a significant amount of
housing. However, not all of these sites will contribute to the five year supply calculations as
many sites will take longer than five years to come forward and be fully developed (e.g.
some large sites could take up to ten years to be completed). As such, latest monitoring
indicates that the Council is unable to demonstrate a five year supply of deliverable housing
land and this needs to be treated as a material factor when determining applications for
residential developments. 

Policy H1/2 states that the Council will have regard to various factors when assessing a
proposal for residential development, including whether the proposal is within the urban
area, the availability of infrastructure and the suitability of the site, with regard to amenity,
the nature of the local environment and the surrounding land uses.

The site is located within the urban area and there is residential development to the north
east and north west. As such, the proposed development would not conflict with the
surrounding land uses. The site was previously in use for vehicle repairs and as such,
would be previously developed land. Therefore, the proposed development would be
acceptable in principle and would be in accordance with Policy H1/2 and Area RM2 of the
Bury Unitary Development Plan and the NPPF.

Design and layout - The proposed development would provide a mixture of detached and
semi-detached dwellings and 2 and 3 bed dwellings. The proposed dwellings would be two
storeys in height and would be constructed from red brick and grey concrete tile, which
would match the surrounding properties. The proposed dwellings would utilise floor to
ceiling windows to add visual interest to the elevations. It is considered that the height and
scale of the dwellings would be appropriate within the streetscene. Therefore, the scale and
design of the proposed dwellings would be appropriate within the context of the area and
would comply with UDP Policies H2/1 - The Form of New Residential Development and
EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design.

The proposed development would provide car parking spaces to the front of the proposed
dwellings and the proposed layout would offer good natural surveillance. The proposed site
plan shows trees would be planted between parking spaces and larger areas of
landscaping, such as the area to the rear of plots 10 - 14 and an area of public open space
adjacent to the flood defence. As such, the proposed development would not be a
prominent feature within the streetscene and would be in accordance with Policies EN1/2,
H2/1 and H2/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.

The level of private amenity space for the proposed dwellings would be acceptable and
there would be space within the rear garden for bin storage. There would be a 1.8 metre
high timber boarded fence between the rear gardens, which would be acceptable.
Therefore, the proposed development would not be a prominent feature and would be in
accordance with Policies EN1/2, H2/1 and H2/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.

Impact upon residential amenity - SPD6 provides guidance on aspect standards between
residential properties and as such, would be relevant in this case. The aspect standards
states that there should be a minimum of 20 metres between directly facing habitable
windows and 13 metres between a habitable room window and a two storey blank wall.

There would be at least 20.2 metres between plots 1 - 9 and the properties fronting onto
Dumers Chase. There would be between 20 and 22 metres between plots 19 - 25 and the
properties fronting onto Dumers Lane. Both of these would be in excess of the 20 metre
aspect standard.

There would be 15 metres between plot 25 and the rear of the properties fronting onto
Morris Street, which would be in excess of the 13 metre aspect standard required.

Page 14



Page No 6

Therefore, the proposed development would not have a significant adverse impact upon the
amenity of the neighbouring properties.

Flood risk - The proposed development is located within flood zone 3 and a Flood Risk
Assessment has been submitted as part of the application.

The Environment Agency have completed the construction of phase 1 of the Radcliffe and
Redvales flood defence scheme, which covers an area from Morris Street to Close Park.
The flood defence at Morris Street consists of a T-shaped bund at the bottom end of Morris
Street The bund is 3 metres in height with a path to connect Morris Street to the existing
riverside walkway and 2 metres in height where it runs parallel with the River Irwell. The
bund connects to a sheet pile wall, of varying heights between 1 - 3 metres which stretches
from Morris Street to the rear of 74 Dumers Lane. The flood defence scheme was designed
to protect 873 properties within the Radcliffe area and this includes the properties on Morris
Street and Dumers Lane. As such, the proposed development of 25 dwellings would also
be protected by the existing flood defences.

The EA have confirmed that a minimum distance of 2 metres would be required between
the proposed development and the existing flood defence for inspection and maintenance
purposes. The applicant has provided revised plans which confirm that there would be a
minimum of 2 metres between the proposed dwellings and the flood defence.

The Environment Agency have no objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating
to finished floor levels, landscaping and invasive species.

Therefore, the proposed development would not increase flood risk to the site or
downstream and would be in accordance with Policy EN5/1 of the Bury Unitary
Development Plan and the NPPF.

Ecology
Protected species - The ecological appraisal confirms that no protected species were
identified on the site, but is located in close proximity to the wildlife corridor which could
have indirect impacts upon bats, otter and kingfisher. No external lighting is proposed along
the River Irwell, which is welcomed. The only residual risk is for otters, which could stray
onto the site during the construction period. The report confirms that this risk is low and
reasonable avoidance measures will be provided. GM Ecology Unit agree with this
assessment and have no objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to the
reasonable avoidance measures.

Proximity to the River Irwell   - The river Irwell is protected under the EU Water Framework
Directive, which requires environmental objectives be set for all surface and ground waters
to enable them to achieve good status or potential for heavily modified water bodies by a
defined date.  One objective is to prevent further deterioration which can include changes to
flow pattern, width and depth of channel, sediment availability/transport and ecology and
biology.

The risks to the ecological potential of the River, resulting from this development primarily
relate to pollution and sediment entering the river during construction and post development
from drainage. GM Ecology Unit state that given the buffer between the development and
the river of several meters, these risk can be managed through the imposition of conditions.
Therefore, the proposed development would not have a significant adverse impact upon the
ecology of the River Irwell.

Contributing to and enhancing the natural Environment   - Section 170 of the NPPF 2018
states that the planning system should contribute to and enhance the natural and local
environment. The site is currently of only very low ecological value and ecological
enhancement measures are proposed in the form of bird boxes, bat boxes and native tree
planting. GM Ecology Unit has no objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating

Page 15



Page No 7

to landscaping.

Therefore, the proposed development would not be detrimental to protected species and
the ecology of the area and would be in accordance with Policies EN6, EN6/3 and EN6/4 of
the Bury Unitary Development Plan and the NPPF.

Highways issues - The site would be accessed from Dumers Lane via Morris Street.
Appropriate visibility splays would be provided. The existing turning head at the end of
Morris Street would be amended and appropriate turning facilities would be provided here
and at the end of the access road. Comments from the Traffic Section will be reported in
the Supplementary Report.

Parking - SPD11 states that the maximum parking standards for a residential development
are as follows:
1.5 spaces per 2 bed dwelling
2 spaces per 3 bed dwelling

This equates to 43 parking spaces.

The proposed development would provide 43 spaces, which would comply with the
maximum parking standards. The site has good access to public transport and would be
located in a sustainable location. As such, the level of parking provision would be
acceptable. Therefore, the proposed development would be in accordance with Policy
HT2/4 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and SPD11.

Planning obligations - The scheme as proposed would normally include a commuted sum
of £66,673.30 for recreation as required by SPD1 and 6 affordable units.

The proposed development would provide 25 affordable units, which would be in excess of
the 6 required and would provide an area of public open space, which would be adjacent to
plot 9.

The applicant has submitted a viability appraisal where a case has been presented that any
commuted sum would render the development unviable. The viability case has been
assessed and accepted. Given that the development is less than 50 dwellings - no on-site
provision is actually required. The proposed development is provising incidental provision.
There is a consideration that 100% provision is seen on balance to be of a higher necessity
given the scale of the development.

The scheme will deliver 100% much needed affordable housing in the Borough which is a
clear benefit of the proposal. The affordable housing provision would be secured through a
condition.

Response to objectors
The issues relating to flood risk have been addressed in the report above.
The proposed development would not increase the risk of flooding downstream as it
would be constructed behind the Radcliffe and Redvales flood defences.
The flood risk information on the government's website has assessed the site without
the recently approved flood defence measures. As these are in place, the proposed
dwellings would be protected from flooding in the same way as the existing properties
on Morris Street.
The impact of the flood defences on raising flood risk in other areas was fully assessed
as part of applications 63559, 64788, 64789, 64790 and 65171 and the flood defence
scheme would not increase the risk of flooding elsewhere.

Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015

Page 16



Page No 8

The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to identify
various solutions during the application process to ensure that the proposal comprised
sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and environmental
conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan. These were
incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning condition. The Local
Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in Paragraph 38 of the
National Planning Policy Framework.

Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions

Conditions/ Reasons

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the
date of this permission.
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act
1990.

2. This decision relates to drawings numbered LP1902-3-001 X, LP1902-3-003,
LP1902-3-006 J, LP1902-3-200, LP1902-3-300 - Sheet 1, LP1902-3-300 - Sheet
2, LP1902-3-301 - Sheet 1, LP1902-3-301 - Sheet 2, LP1902-3-302,
LP1902-3-304 - Sheet 1, LP1902-3-305, LP1902-3-400, LP1902-3-410,
LP1902-3-412 and the development shall not be carried out except in accordance
with the drawings hereby approved.
Reason.  For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed.

3. The development hereby approved shall only be developed by or on behalf of the
applicant as an affordable housing scheme and each and every residential
dwelling constructed as part of the scheme shall subsequently be occupied only
and at all times as affordable housing, as defined in Supplementary Planning
Document 5 -  Affordable Housing Provision in New Residential Developments. 
Reason - The proposed development has been granted given the particular
circumstances of the applicant following a funding package from the Homes
England which provides an opportunity to promote increased affordable housing,
but as a result a recreational contribution pursuant to Supplementary Planning
Document 1 (Open Space, Sport and Recreation Provision in New Housing
Development) will not be provided. This condition is thereby to ensure that in order
to make the development acceptable in planning terms, as a result of not making
a recreational contribution the whole development shall instead contribute to
satisfying the need for affordable housing provision.

4. Details/Samples of the (materials/bricks) to be used in the external elevations,
together with details of their manufacturer, type/colour and size, shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the
development is commenced. Only the approved materials/bricks shall be used for
the construction of the development.
Reason. No material samples have been submitted and are required in the
interests of visual amenity and to ensure a satisfactory development pursuant to
UDP Policy EN1/1 Visual Amenity.

5. No development shall commence unless and until:-
A contaminated land Preliminary Risk Assessment report to assess the
actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks at the site
shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority;
Where actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks have
been identified, detailed site investigation and suitable risk assessment shall
be submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority;
Where remediation/protection measures is/are required, a detailed

Page 17



Page No 9

Remediation Strategy shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the
Local Planning Authority.

Reason.  The scheme does not provide full details of the actual contamination and
subsequent remediation, which is required to secure the satisfactory development
of the site in terms of human health, controlled waters, ground gas and the wider
environment and pursuant to National Planning Policy Framework Section 15 -
Conserving and enhancing the natural environment.

6. Following the provisions of Condition 5 of this planning permission, where
remediation is required, the approved Remediation Strategy must be carried out to
the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority within agreed timescales; and
A Site Verification Report detailing the actions taken and conclusions at each
stage of the remediation works, including substantiating evidence, shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the
development being brought into use.
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human
health, controlled waters and the wider environment and pursuant to National
Planning Policy Framework Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural
environment.

7. No development shall commence unless and until:-
Intrusive site investigations have been carried out on site to establish the exact
situation in respect of coal mining legacy features and the findings of the
intrusive site investigations have been submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. The intrusive site investigations shall be carried
out in accordance with authoritative UK guidance;
Where the findings of the intrusive site investigations identify that coal mining
legacy on the site poses a risk to surface stability, a detailed remediation
scheme to protect the development from the effects of such land instability
shall be submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority for
consideration and approval in writing

Reason.  The scheme does not provide full details of the actual contamination and
subsequent remediation, which is required to secure the satisfactory development
of the site in terms of human health, controlled waters, ground gas and the wider
environment and pursuant to National Planning Policy Framework Section 15 -
Conserving and enhancing the natural environment.

8. Following the provisions of Condition 7 of this planning permission, where
remediation is required in relation to coal mining, the approved Remediation
Strategy must be carried out to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority;
and
A Site Verification Report detailing the actions taken and conclusions at each
stage of the remediation works, including substantiating evidence, shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the
occupation of the development hereby approved
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human
health, controlled waters and the wider environment and pursuant to National
Planning Policy Framework Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural
environment.

9. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved (excluding site
clearance, demolition, or works relating to site investigation, remediation or ground
works), a scheme for the provision of electric vehicle charging points shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
approved scheme shall be implemented prior to occupation of the building hereby
approved.
Reason. In accordance with paragraph 35 and 124 of the NPPF, to encourage the
uptake of ultra-low emission vehicles and ensure the development is sustainable.
To safeguard residential amenity, public health and quality of life.

Page 18



Page No 10

10. Prior to the commencement of any earthworks, a reasonable avoidance measures
method statement for otters shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The development hall be carried out in accordance with
the approved method statement.
Reason. In order to ensure that no harm is caused to a Protected Species
pursuant to policies EN6 - Conservation of the Natural Environment and EN6/3 -
Features of Ecological Value of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and National
Planning Policy Framework Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural
environment.

11. No works to trees or shrubs shall occur between the 1st March and 31st August in
any year unless a detailed bird nest survey by a suitably experienced ecologist
has been carried out immediately prior to clearance.
Reason. In order to ensure that no harm is caused to a Protected Species
pursuant to policies EN6 - Conservation of the Natural Environment and EN6/3 -
Features of Ecological Value of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and National
Planning Policy Framework Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural
environment.

12. No development shall commence until full details of a scheme for the eradication
and/or control of Japanese Knotweed (Fallonica Japonica, Rouse Decraene,
Polygonum Cuspidatum) and Himalayan Balsam (Impatiens Glandulifera), Giant
Hogweed and Monbretia is submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The approved management plan shall include a timetable for
implementation. Should a delay of more than one year occur between the date of
approval of the management scheme and either the date of implementation of the
management scheme or the date of development commencing, a further site
survey must be undertaken and submitted to the Local Planning Authority.
Reason.  The scheme does not provide full details of the actual extent of
Japanese Knotweed and Himalayan Balsam in the interest of UDP Policy EN9 -
Landscape and pursuant to National Planning Policy Framework Section 11 -
Conserving and enhancing the natural environment.

13. No development, site clearance, earth moving shall take place, or material or
machinery brought on site until a method statement to protect the River Irwell from
accidental spillages, dust and debris has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. All measures will be implemented and
maintained for the duration of the construction period in accordance with the
approved details.
Reason. In order to ensure that no harm is caused to a Protected Species
pursuant to policies EN6 - Conservation of the Natural Environment and EN6/3 -
Features of Ecological Value of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and National
Planning Policy Framework Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural
environment.

14. No development shall take place until details to show that the proposed
development would not impact negatively upon the ecological potential of the
River Irwell resulting from the disposal of foul water and surface water
post-development has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The details, as approved, shall be implemented in full in
accordance with a timetable which has first been agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.
Reason. In order to ensure that no harm is caused to a Protected Species
pursuant to policies EN6 - Conservation of the Natural Environment and EN6/3 -
Features of Ecological Value of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and National
Planning Policy Framework Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural
environment.

15. A landscaping scheme shall be submitted to, and approved by the Local Planning
Page 19



Page No 11

Authority prior to the commencement of the development.  The contents of the
plan should include native tree and shrub planting and the provision of bat
bricks/tubes within the new development and bat and bird boxes. The scheme
shall avoid trees or shrubs within 5 metres of the landward toe of the existing flood
defences. The approved scheme shall thereafter be implemented not later than 12
months from the date the building(s) is first occupied or within the first available
tree planting season; and any trees or shrubs removed, dying or becoming
severely damaged or becoming severely diseased within five years of planting
shall be replaced by trees or shrubs of a similar size or species to those originally
required to be planted. 
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site and in the interests of
visual amenity pursuant to Policies H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential
Development,  EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design and EN8/2 - Woodland and
Tree Planting of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and chapter 15 - Conserving
and enhancing the natural environment of the NPPF.

16. No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until details of
the finished floor levels and external levels has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall be constructed and
completed in accordance with the approved details.
Reason. To ensure the structural integrity of the flood defences, thereby reducing
risk from flooding and to reduce the risk of flooding to the proposed development
and future users pursuant to Policy EN5/1 - New Development and Flood Risk of
the Bury Unitary Development Plan and the NPPF.

17. No development shall commence unless or until a landscape and ecological
management plan, including long-term design objectives, management
responsibilities and maintenance schedules for all landscaped areas (except
privately owned domestic gardens), shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by, the local planning authority. The landscape and ecological management plan
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details prior to first
occupation of the dwellings hereby approved. The scheme shall include the
following elements:

details of maintenance regimes
details of any new soft landscaping including planting schedule largely based
on native species, for retained semi-natural areas.
details of mitigation and enhancement measures outlined in EIA (section4/5,
Enzygo, Aug 2020)
details of treatment of site boundaries; including alongside new Agency Flood
embankment.
details of management responsibilities

Reason.  To secure the satisfactory development of the site in the interests of
visual amenity and to ensure the protection of wildlife and supporting habitat
pursuant to Policies H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential Development,  EN1/2 -
Townscape and Built Design, EN6/3 - Features of Ecological Value and EN8/2 -
Woodland and Tree Planting of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and chapter
15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment of the NPPF.

For further information on the application please contact Helen Leach on 0161 253 5322

Page 20



PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN 

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

 No Window 

 No Window 

ADDRESS:

APP. NO 65015

Land at Morris Street
Radcliffe



(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2015). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

Har
dy

's 
Gat

e 
Brid

ge

Ps

Weir
Mast

TCB

Ps

Tank

LB

14

14

20

25

41

48

36

2

32

39

27

Business Park

1 Bury South

24

1

(P
H)

262

266

Shelter

1

260

Brid
ge

 In
n

Childrens Nursery

7

65

11

9

46

1

26

34

26

11

12

15

27

Tanks

17

15
11

39

El Sub Sta

15

3

5

12

12

1

8

2

11

2

2

41

53

15

17

34

24

1

236

15

14

246

323

21

31

11

244

1

2

11

12

196

204

2
283

303

226

Shelter

206

295

224

216

28
5

Chemical Works

12

3

13

30
5

New Bridge

2

9

1

31

315

23

33

6

35

33

1

18

35
A

22
1

74

21a

Shelter

21

8

11

2

21

47

1
4

24
5

23
7

1

23
5

1

23
9

14

2

Works

61
75

59

59a

55

36

23

51

38
24

15

2
6

21

11

51

Mill

41

Tanks

ESSs

1

20

10

11

12

26
7

25
1

1

184

186

263

259

26
5

PO

14

269

Works

162 El Sub Sta

176

166

Sewage Works

Works
Sewage

Pipeline

Pipeline

P
ipeline

River Irwell

Conduit

C
onduit

Conduit

River Irwell

Conduit

C
onduit

C
onduit

C
onduit

R
iver Irw

ell

R
iv

er
Irw

el
l

ESS

El

El S
ub

 S
ta

El S
ub Sta

Sub Sta

G
AT

E LA
NE

H
A
R
D

YS
 D

R
IV

E

YORK STREET

B
E
A
LE

Y
 A

V
E
N
U
E

W
H
E
W

E
LL  A

V
EN

U
E

H
A
S
S
A
LL

M
O

R
R
IS

 S
TR

E
E
T

S
T
R
E
ET

S
E
D
D
O

N
 A

V
E
N
U
E

LIN
LE

YS
T
R
E
ET

H
AR

D
Y
S
 C

LO
SE

D
U

M
E
R

S C
H
A
S
E

D
U

M
E
R
S
 C

H
A
SE

B
A
ILLIES

T
R
E
ET

D
U

M
E
R
S
 L

A
N
E

H
A
LLS

 C
LO

S
E

T
H

O
R

P
E

 A
V

E
N

U
E

D
U

M
E
R
S L

A
N
E

THORPE AVENUE

W
A
T

E
R

S
ID

E

AV
E
N

U
E

Track

Track

Track

B
irch S

tr e
et

Track

66
.4

m

67.1m

66.1m

67.7m

Viewpoints

1

2 3

4
5

Page 21



 

65015 

Photo 1

 

Photo 2

 

Page 22



Photo 3 

 

Photo 4 

 

Page 23



Photo 5 

 

Page 24



P
age 25



P
age 26



P
age 27



P
age 28



P
age 29



P
age 30



P
age 31



Page No 12

Ward: Bury East - Redvales Item  02

Applicant: Mr Ullah

Location: 55A Horne Street, Bury, BL9 9BW

Proposal: Variation of conditions following approval of planning application 45319. Changes to
condition 3 to extend opening hours Sunday to Thursday until 22:30 and Friday to
Saturday until 23:00

Application Ref:  66066/Full Target Date: 09/12/2020

Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions

Description
The application relates to an end terraced property located on Horne Street. The property is
sub-divided into two units, with a residential unit at first floor and a Use Class E unit at
ground floor. The proposal relates to the ground floor unit that has previously been granted
planning permission for retail use, with opening hours until 22:00 hours.

Planning permission is sought to vary condition 3 of application 45319 to extend opening
hours until 22:30hrs Sunday - Thursday and until 23:00 hrs Friday to Saturday.

Relevant Planning History
45319 - Change of use to retail (A1) on ground floor and ancillary residential
accommodation on first floor - Approve with Conditions 16/11/2005

Publicity
Neighbour letters sent 20/10/2020. 4 objections received from the residents of 47 Horne
Street, 42 Horne Street, 26 Horne Street, 29 Horne Street in relation to:

Currently a quiet residential street especially outside of daytime trading hours.
Effective parking permit measures means there is minimal traffic noise.
Extended opening hours will increase traffic and noise pollution.
Residents rely on uninterrupted sleep for work. Noise interruptions after 8pm are
extremely inconvenient.
Evidence shows continued sleep deprivation to be one of the biggest causes of stress
which starts a chain reaction of negative health implications from heart disease to
depression.
Moved to street because it is a residential street with no night time trade.
No issues with daytime cafe open but if it had been trading later i would not have moved
here.
Unclear what intended extended hours are for - cafe, cornershop, pool room?
Large number of takeaways in the area and shops that cater to the community.
Could create a large amount of litter and noise.
Residential street and do not feel a business of any sort should be open until 23:30.
Lack of details is concerning as current use is unclear.
Haven't actually seen these premises open for several years.
Impact on house prices negatively.
Will result in more people leaving the area and research shows that homeownership
leads to greater residential stability which in tun leads to better civil engagement.
Easily inferred that areas complied solely of renters leads to social decline overtime. 
Decrease in home ownership leads to increased social crime.
Each anti-social behaviour costs society between £5 - £6.7K, and each violent crime

Page 32



Page No 13

between £5 - £13,300K.
This area is already within a wider network that is trying to fight against the intrusion of
drug gangs, and indeed the police are aware of many reports
This links back to an earlier comment about the strange opening times of this
establishment, as well as observations of the customer profile, which makes it a place
that does nothing to benefit the local community.
The only current impact of the business is negative – litter problems.  Such an issue will
only increase with night-time trade, and again this will further accelerate the
environmental decline. 
Financially, it does little to support the local community.  It provides no stable or
well-paid jobs that allow anyone to sustain a living, and the new proposed opening times
may at best open one or two further part-time roles at minimum wage – that's if it even
trades on a daily basis.  
Any business should contribute something to the community it is part of.  This business
never reaches out to residents; actually, it is quite the opposite. 
This business contributes to social exclusion not inclusion and integration.
I do question the need to sell coffee and sandwiches later, and thus wonder what else
will be traded.
I can understand that night cafes are more popular with some cultures and do not object
to Bury Council providing such business opportunities.  However, please, offer premises
within the town centre, or if in Fishpool then on a section of road that is not residential
but populated by several businesses already, some of which operate later.
There is a large retired and pensioner community here too, several with associated
health issues, and the last thing they need is anything that could contribute to
worsening conditions.

Following an amendment to the description to reduce the proposed opening hours further
neighbour letters sent 16/11/2020. Objections received from No. 42 Horne Street, 26 Horne
Street, 29 Horne Street and 30 Devon Street in relation to:

I am appalled that the initial application was approved.  This will have an
extremely negative impact on my and other residents' health and mental well-being, and
the local environment.  The fact that the original proposal includes plans to extent the
hospitality area to a second floor, and this has been approved too, is disturbing to
discover.
I do not want a potential late bar/cafe/club on my doorstep.  As I stated previously, there
are many factors to consider - I cannot see that these have been considered and
addressed at all.  What evidence do you have to prove that this will not have a
potentially adverse effect on my sleep pattern, and consequently for my physical and
mental health? 
The variation proposes an insignificant minor adjustment of closing time by 30 minutes
on Sun-Thurs.  This makes no difference - it is still on a RESIDENTIAL street,
surrounded by residents on all sides and directions.  No hospitality business provides a
silent and clear external environment as soon as the closing time hits.  The after effects
of customers finishing, paying, leaving, saying goodbye and chatting outside, driving
away etc, as well as the business closing up, cleaning, discarding of waste, and
employees leaving etc, all contributes to a much later end time when residents' night
activity returns to its normal quietness.  So, we are still talking about the impact being
felt well-over 11pm. 
Also, what will it be like upto this time?  There will be increased traffic, noise, and
pollution during the whole don time I have after normal working hours - so I will never be
able to just chill-out at home, distress, and unwind as there will constantly be a
distraction opposite.  This is not fair!  Again, this is a residential street! 
I have no objection to the proposals of this business if it were in a more social spot that
doesn't impact residents - as I suggested before, offer the owner alternative premises in
town where other cafes are etc. 
There are many empty properties in Bury commercial centre that would benefit from
occupancy and would create wider business opportunities and growth.  The town centre
needs as much help as possible to survive the COVID-19 impact.  It makes no sense to
have this type of proposed business at the proposed opening times on a residential

Page 33



Page No 14

street.  Can you please provide me with a comparative impact analysis that proves it is
best placed where it is?
Late night opening in a residential area would create more noise and there would be a
parking issue which is already a problem in the area.
If takeaway is available, issues with the current littering problem would be compounded.
Please note that rats have been seen in the back street nearby which a food
establishment would create an even bigger attraction to these pests.
Still do not feel the variation proposed (a 2230 closing Sunday to Thursday and 2300
closing Friday and Saturday) addresses the concerns raised by a number of residents.
This is a residential street that many of us have chosen specifically because is quiet
and away from the mess, noise and traffic that is generated by all of the takeaways just
around the corner on Parkhills road.
This café has barely been open in the past year and I do not see how granting an
license to open later has any merit from a business or social point of view.
Fly tipping and litter have been a big issue due to the proximity of takeaways and
college students and resident shave took it upon themselves on a number of occasions
to organise street cleaning and community clean ups to combat this; all of which could
be unpicked by a late night venue especially one serving fast food (if that is the
proposed business).
Residents continue to oppose this and nothing has been done by the owner to consult
our views.
Operation of late licensed premises on Horne street bury would cause problems with
noise on a quiet residential street
Parking is limited and residents already have to pay to park on this street
Haven't seen these premises open at all for past couple of years

Statutory/Non-Statutory Consultations
Environmental Health - Pollution Control - received no previous complaints in relation to
noise. Would like to know what mitigating features they are likely to use to prevent noise
nuisance. Would welcome a noise report to determine what form if any mitigation may be
required. This could include for example sound proofing the party wall, as there is
residential property on the other side.

Pre-start Conditions - Not relevant

Unitary Development Plan and Policies
S1/5 Neighbourhood Centres and Local Shops
S2/5 New Local Shopping Provision
EN7/2 Noise Pollution
EC4/1 Small Businesses

Issues and Analysis

The following report includes analysis of  the merits of the application against the relevant
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be
specifically mentioned.

Use
Application 45319 changed the use of the ground floor of the premises to retail. This is
considered to be the currently lawful use for the ground floor of the building. From the 1st
September retail uses fall within Class E of the Use Classes order. Class E also includes:

Display or retail sale of goods, other than hot food;
Page 34



Page No 15

Sale of food and drink for consumption (mostly) on the premises

Provision of:

- Financial services,

- Professional services (other than health or medical services), or

- Other appropriate services in a commercial, business or service locality

Indoor sport, recreation or fitness (not involving motorised vehicles or firearms)

Provision of medical or health services (except the use of premises attached to the
residence of the consultant or practitioner)

Creche, day nursery or day centre (not including a residential use)

Uses which can be carried out in a residential area without detriment to its amenity:

- Offices to carry out any operational or administrative functions,

- Research and development of products or processes

- Industrial processes

The applicants have confirmed that they wish to use the unit for a cafe/restaurant which is
listed within the lawful uses above however, the applicant can use this unit for any of the
uses above as specified within Class E of the Use Class Order provided they do not open
past 2200hrs as set out within condition 3 application 45319. This application is not to
determine the use of the unit the application seeks to vary condition 3 of permission 45319
to extend opening hours and this is what needs to be duly assessed.

Residential Amenity
S2/5 – New Local Shopping Provision Outside Recognised Shopping Centres assesses the
suitability of proposals for new local shops. Whilst the use is not under scrutiny within this
application Policy S2/5 requires applications to be assessed in relation to  the potential
nuisance that would be created for neighbouring residents.  UDP Policy EC4/1- Small
Businesses is also applicable.  Proposals for small businesses will be acceptable when the
scale of development is appropriate to, and the use is environmentally compatible with, the
surrounding area in which it is to be located, and where they do not conflict with other
policies and proposals of the Plan. In addition UDP Policy EN7/2 - Noise Pollution does not
permit development which could lead to an unacceptable noise nuisance to nearby
occupiers and/or amenity users.

There are residential properties to the side, rear and front of the site and as such the
extension of the opening hours has potential to impact on these neighbouring residents.
The unit can already trade until 2200hours. Whilst previous occupants may not have traded
until this time, and the unit may not currently be in use, this has already been established.
The application seeks to extend the trading hours by 30 minutes on a Sunday - Thursday,
and by an additional hour on a Friday and Saturday night.

Whilst the proposal is located within a predominantly residential area,  there are a mix of
commercial uses within the immediate vicinity including nearby Parkhills Road which is a
busy thoroughfare and the site already has an established Class E use. As such it is
considered that there would be an existing amount of noise and disturbance associated
with the site already. Taking into consideration the fall back position that the applicant could
utilise the entire ground floor for Class E use until 2200 hours in any event, it is considered
that the limited floor space, the location of the unit and the amended opening hours are not
so protracted to create any additional harm or impact and the proposal is therefore
considered to be acceptable.

Page 35



Page No 16

In addition to this, as the use is considered to be permitted development the seeking of
additional noise insulation would not be a reasonable consideration due to the nature of the
application. The application has been submitted in relation to a variation of condition and
the opening hours could be utilised for any of the Class E uses listed. If noise and
disturbance issues do arise there are existing controls under environmental health
legislation and licensing that can be utilised.

Response to Neighbours
The use of the unit is not under review within this planning application. The applicant can
utilise the unit for any of the uses as set out within the main body of the report provided it
falls within Class E. Use Classes have been set by central government and the uses set out
within Class E are outside of the control of the LPA. The last lawful use for this unit was
retail, even though the unit may not have been occupied more recently.

The original application was approved in 2005 and Environmental Health have confirmed
they have had no complaints in relation to noise and this venue in the last 15 years. The
first floor was retained as separate residential unit. Having reviewed the original planning
application it would appear there were no objections raised from residents in relation to the
original change of use or proposed opening hours.
Whilst Environmental Health have asked for a noise report, and mitigation as stated
previously the use of the unit is not under scrutiny, it is the opening hours that are being
reviewed and by between 30 mins to 1 hour. The applicant has the fall back position of
being able to open until 2200 hrs in any event without providing any mitigation.
The surrounding roads are currently restricted by permit parking. As such any visitors to the
site would be limited in their ability to park. The proposal unit is small in scale and it is
considered that an additional 30 minutes - 1 hour opening times outside of what is already
permitted would not lead to a significant increase in traffic.

There have been no contamination or waste management issues raised by the Councils'
environmental health and waste management sections.
The licensing of the premises is dealt under the Licensing Act 2003 which is separate to the
planning application.
The LPA can not restrict who operates out of the unit and matters in relation to noise and
anti-social behaviour are dealt with by legislations outside of the planning process. The LPA
can not ask the applicant to move to another unit to conduct their business, as the unit has
a lawful established class E use.

Impact on property values is a non-material planning consideration not relevant to the
decision.

The impact of the proposal in terms of residential amenity have been set out above.

Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015

The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to identify
various solutions during the application process to ensure that the proposal comprised
sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and environmental
conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan. These were
incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning condition. The Local
Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in Paragraph 38 of the
National Planning Policy Framework.

Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions

Conditions/ Reasons
Page 36



Page No 17

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the
date of this permission.
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act
1990.

2. This decision relates to drawings numbered 1HSB05/1 and the development shall
not be carried out except in accordance with the drawings hereby approved.
Reason.  For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
design pursuant to policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed below.

3. The ground floor unit shall not be open outside Sunday to Thursday 0900 hrs until
2230hrs and Friday to Saturday 0900 hrs until 2300 hrs
Reason. To safeguard the amenities of the occupiers of nearby residential
accommodation pursuant to Policies S2/5 – New Local Shopping Provision
Outside Recognised Shopping Centres, EC4/1- Small Businesses and EN7/2 -
Noise Pollution

For further information on the application please contact Helen Goldsbrough on 0161 253
5277

Page 37



Page No 18Page 38



PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN 

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

 No Window 

 No Window 

ADDRESS:

APP. NO 66066

55A Horne Street
Bury



(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2015). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

49

48

37

39

25

P
ark C

ottage

The Moss

Vanstone

29

36
34

53
55a

41

36

5

PW

Shelter

Church
Bethesda

Pentecostal

11

32

29

44

26

34

24

24

BACK P
ARKHILLS R

OAD S
OUTH

BACK P
ARKHILLS

B
R

IE
R

L
E

Y
 S

T
R

E
E

T

ROAD N
ORTH

H
O

R
N

E
 S

T
R

E
E

T

80.5m

81.7m

82.0m

Viewpoints

1

3

2
4

5

Page 39



66066 

Photo 1 

Photo 2  

 

Page 40



Photo 3 

 

 

Photo 4 

 

 

Page 41



Photo 5 

 

Photo 6 

 

Page 42



Shop Area

Stairs to
flat above

Sh
ut

te
rRear Yard

Serving Counter

Coffee/ Tea
Prep
Area

EXISTING REAR ELEVATION EXISTING FRONT ELEVATION

EXISTING SIDE ELEVATION

EXISTING FLOOR PLAN

P

a

r

k

 

C

o

t

t

a

g

e

T

h

e

 

M

o

s

s

H

O

R

N

E

 
S

T

R

E

E

T

4

4

2

6

B

A

C

K

 

P

A

R

K

H

I

L

L

S

C

h

u

r

c

h

5

5

a

B

e

t

h

e

s

d

a

4

1

R

O

A

D

 

N

O

R

T

H

3

4

P

e

n

t

e

c

o

s

t

a

l

2

5

5

3

4

8

2

9

81.7m

3

9

8

2

.
0

m

3

6

409775

409800

409825

metres

0 10 20

409843

N

JOB

ADDRESS

DATE SCALE

1:100 / 1:1250

SHEET

1@A3

This drawing is subject to a detailed building and site survey,

therefore no guarantee of its accuracy can be given.

This drawing has been draughted in accordance with the clients

design requirements.

All areas are approximate and are subject to a detailed building

and site survey and further design development.

All dimensions should be checked prior to commencement

of construction on site. Measurements should not be taken off

the drawing.

NOTES

Rev Revision Date

30/08/2020

55a HORNE STREET
BURY
BL9 9BW

VARIATION OF CONDITION TO ALLOW EXTENDED OPERATION
HOURS

LOCATION PLAN
SCALE  1:1250

SITE AREA                   =  106m2

SHOP FLOOR AREA   =  54m2

P
age 43



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
DECISION OF: 

 
PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE 

 
DATE: 

 
15 December 2020 

 
SUBJECT: 

 
DELEGATED DECISIONS 

 
REPORT FROM: 

 
HEAD OF DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: 

 

DAVID MARNO 

  

 
TYPE OF DECISION: 

 
COUNCIL  
 

FREEDOM OF 

INFORMATION/STATUS: 
This paper is within the public domain 
 

 
SUMMARY: 

 
The report lists: 
Recent delegated planning decisions since the last PCC 

 
OPTIONS & 

RECOMMENDED OPTION 

 
The Committee is recommended to the note the report 

and appendices 

 
IMPLICATIONS: 

 

 
Corporate Aims/Policy 

Framework: 

 
Do the proposals accord with the Policy 

Framework?  Yes   
Statement by the S151 Officer: 
Financial Implications and Risk 

Considerations: 

 
Executive Director of Resources to advise 

regarding risk management 

 
Statement by Executive Director 

of Resources: 

 

N/A 

 

 
Equality/Diversity implications: 

 
No  

 

 
Considered by Monitoring Officer: 

 
N/A 

 

 

 
Wards Affected: 

 

All listed 

 
Scrutiny Interest: 
 

 

N/A 

 

Agenda 

Item 

 

REPORT FOR NOTING 
5 

Page 45

Agenda Item 5



TRACKING/PROCESS   DIRECTOR: 

 

Chief Executive/ 

Strategic Leadership 

Team 

Executive 

Member/Chair 
Ward Members Partners 

 

 

   

Scrutiny Committee Committee Council  

 

 

   

    

 

1.0 BACKGROUND 

 

This is a monthly report to the Planning Control Committee of the delegated planning 

decisions made by the officers of the Council.  

 

2.0 CONCLUSION  

 

That the item be noted. 

 

 

 

List of Background Papers:-None 

 

Contact Details:- 

 

David Marno, Head of Development Management  

Planning Services, Department for Resources and Regulation 

3 Knowsley Place 

Bury BL9 0EJ 

 

Tel: 0161 253 5291 

Email: d.marno@bury.gov.uk 

  

 
 

Page 46



Planning applications decided using Delegated Powers 

Between  and  02/11/2020 06/12/2020 

Bury East Ward: 

Approve with Conditions 12/11/2020 

Creation of first floor with two storey extension at side 

Jinnah Day Centre, Alfred Street, Pimhole, Bury, BL9 7HE 
FUL App. Type: 63367 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 10/11/2020 

Change of use from takeaway (Sui Generis) to salon (Sui Generis) 

36 Haymarket Street, Bury, BL9 0AY 
FUL App. Type: 65754 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 03/12/2020 

Refurbishment of the roof and installation of 3 no. new replacement rooflights 

6-8 Manchester Road, Bury, BL9 0ED 
FUL App. Type: 65840 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 03/12/2020 

Listed building consent for refurbishment of the roof and installation of 3 no. new replacement 

rooflights 

6-8 Manchester Road, Bury, BL9 0ED 
LBC App. Type: 65841 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Refused 18/11/2020 

Listed building consent to replace 3 no. existing windows to front elevation with UPVC in 

anthracite grey 

485 Rochdale Old Road, Bury, BL9 7TB 
LBC App. Type: 65968 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Prior Approval Not Required - Extension 19/11/2020 

Prior approval for proposed single storey rear extension 

18 Benson Street, Pimhole, Bury, BL9 7EP 
GPDE App. Type: 65998 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Refused 04/12/2020 

Single storey extension at rear 

2 Beech Grove Close, Bury, BL9 6ES 
FUL App. Type: 66111 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Bury East - Moorside Ward: 

Prior Approval Not Required - Extension 10/11/2020 

Prior notification for proposed single storey rear extension 

19 Danesmoor Drive, Bury, BL9 6ER 
GPDE App. Type: 66027 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Bury East - Redvales Ward: 

04/12/2020 Page 1 of 12 
Page 47



Approve with Conditions 20/11/2020 

Two storey side and rear extension including balcony to the front; Rear dormer extension; 

Outbuilding in rear garden 

411 Manchester Road, Bury, BL9 9RY 
FUL App. Type: 65858 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Refused 11/11/2020 

Two storey side extension; Two storey rear extension; Front porch extension 

159 Radcliffe Road, Bury, BL9 9LN 
FUL App. Type: 65867 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 10/11/2020 

Single storey extension at side/rear 

107 Gigg Lane, Bury, BL9 9JB 
FUL App. Type: 65947 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 12/11/2020 

Raise ridge height of roof and roof extension with single storey extension at side and rear, and 

two storey extensions at side and front, to include overhanging canopy. Creation of new access 

and parking area to front of property. 

119 Cornwall Drive, Bury, BL9 9EX 
FUL App. Type: 65966 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 11/11/2020 

Replacement of existing side/rear extensions with single storey extension at side and single 

storey extension at rear; Replacement of front bay window with timber clad projecting box 

window; Relocation of entrance door from south to east elevation with new window opening 

and replacement of all existing windows 

13 Bradford Terrace, Bury, BL9 0TT 
FUL App. Type: 65974 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 19/11/2020 

Construction of motor control centre kiosk 

Bury Waste Water Treatment Works, Crossfield Street, Bury, BL9 9TF 
FUL App. Type: 65996 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 19/11/2020 

Three storey extension at side/rear with balcony/steps to garden level and loft conversion with 

rear dormer 

559 Manchester Road, Bury, BL9 9ST 
FUL App. Type: 66020 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 02/12/2020 

1no. externally & internally illuminated fascia sign, 1no. non illuminated PETG unit (acrylic 

panel), 3no. non illuminated ACM panels with applied graphics, 2 no. poster cases 

Pilot Mill, Alfred Street, Bury, BL9 7EJ 
ADV App. Type: 66059 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Bury West - Church Ward: 

Refused 18/11/2020 

Change of use from betting office to hot food takeaway (Sui Generis) with extraction flue at 

rear 

319 Bolton Road, Bury, BL8 2PD 
FUL App. Type: 65911 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

04/12/2020 Page 2 of 12 
Page 48



Approve with Conditions 05/11/2020 

Single storey extension at front/side and front porch 

65 Mile Lane, Bury, BL8 2JR 
FUL App. Type: 65920 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 04/11/2020 

Demolition of existing garage, and erection of single storey extension at side / rear 

281 Ainsworth Road, Bury, BL8 2LS 
FUL App. Type: 65941 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 19/11/2020 

Two storey side extension; Single/two storey rear extension; Canopy at front 

598 Bolton Road, Bury, BL8 2DR 
FUL App. Type: 65959 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Prior Approval Not Required - Extension 10/11/2020 

Prior approval for proposed single storey rear extension 

19 Fieldhead Avenue, Bury, BL8 2LX 
GPDE App. Type: 65969 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 16/11/2020 

Three storey extension at rear with second floor juliet balcony 

15 Lodge Side, Bury, BL8 2SW 
FUL App. Type: 65972 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 02/12/2020 

Demolition of existing conservatory to be replaced with single storey rear extension; Single 

storey side extension; Rear driveway widening 

112 Fieldhead Avenue, Bury, BL8 2NA 
FUL App. Type: 65986 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 02/12/2020 

First floor extension at front/side 

2 Chatton Close, Bury, BL8 2UE 
FUL App. Type: 66019 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Prior Approval Not Required - Extension 11/11/2020 

Prior notification for proposed single storey rear extension 

22 Whitecroft Drive, Bury, BL8 2TN 
GPDE App. Type: 66026 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 03/12/2020 

New front porch; single storey rear extension; two storey rear and side extension and external 

alterations including render to elevations 

4 Kensington Drive, Bury, BL8 2DE 
FUL App. Type: 66061 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Bury West - Elton Ward: 

Approve with Conditions 12/11/2020 

Flat to pitched roof conversion on existing rear extension 

72 Wood Street, Bury, BL8 2QU 
FUL App. Type: 65938 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

04/12/2020 Page 3 of 12 
Page 49



Approve with Conditions 06/11/2020 

Single storey rear extension; Single storey front extension 

10 Brandon Close, Bury, BL8 1XL 
FUL App. Type: 65943 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 04/11/2020 

Two storey side extension 

12 Lepp Crescent, Bury, BL8 1HX 
FUL App. Type: 65965 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 16/11/2020 

Single storey extensions at side and rear 

12 Wroxham Close, Bury, BL8 1EN 
FUL App. Type: 65993 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 02/12/2020 

Single storey side extension 

526 Brandlesholme Road, Bury, BL8 1JH 
FUL App. Type: 66047 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

North Manor Ward: 

Approve with Conditions 18/11/2020 

Single storey extension at rear with decking area; Raising of garage roof with new pitched roof 

and conversion of garage to bathroom/uility space; Alterations to front elevation windows; 

Render to external elevations 

6 Keats Road, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL8 4EP 
FUL App. Type: 65891 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 06/11/2020 

Single storey rear extension 

3 Garden Street, Summerseat, Bury, BL9 5PQ 
FUL App. Type: 65916 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 06/11/2020 

Two storey side extension 

89 Springside Road, Bury, BL9 5JG 
FUL App. Type: 65978 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Refused 06/11/2020 

Dormer at front. Partial removal of existing roof to form new balcony at side. Raised decking 

area to rear garden. single storey extension at side. Large sliding doors to west elevation. 

The Fairways, Hove Close, Tottington, Bury, BL8 4QF 
FUL App. Type: 65982 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 27/11/2020 

Two storey extension at side and single storey extension at side/rear; Widening of existing 

driveway 

3 Mayfield Road, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9TB 
FUL App. Type: 66003 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

04/12/2020 Page 4 of 12 
Page 50



Approve with Conditions 03/12/2020 

Conversion of garage to utility/shower room and enclosure of covered area to the front to form 

a porch/cloakroom 

7 Greenpark Close, Tottington, Bury, BL8 4QB 
FUL App. Type: 66014 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Prior Approval Not Required - Extension 10/11/2020 

Prior approval for proposed single storey rear extension 

21 Aviemore Close, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9WA 
GPDE App. Type: 66033 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Prior Approval Not Required - Extension 10/11/2020 

Prior approval of proposed single storey rear extension 

26 Stanford Hall Crescent, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9FD 
GPDE App. Type: 66035 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Prior Approval Not Required - Extension 10/11/2020 

Prior approval for proposed single storey rear extension 

34 Stretton Road, Tottington, Bury, BL8 4DF 
GPDE App. Type: 66050 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Prior Approval Not Required - Extension 19/11/2020 

Prior Approval for proposed single storey rear extension 

29 Hawthorn Avenue, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9UZ 
GPDE App. Type: 66072 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Prestwich - Holyrood Ward: 

Approve with Conditions 16/11/2020 

Retrospective planning permission, As-Built garage/storage within rear garden. 

7 Parrenthorn Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 2RH 
FUL App. Type: 65992 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 20/11/2020 

First floor side extension 

7 Chatsworth Avenue, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 1LZ 
FUL App. Type: 66023 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Prestwich - Sedgley Ward: 

Approve with Conditions 27/11/2020 

1 No. internally illuminated digital LED screen 

219 Bury Old Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 1JF 
FUL App. Type: 65620 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 27/11/2020 

1 No. internally illuminated digital LED screen 

219 Bury Old Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 1JF 
ADV App. Type: 65621 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

04/12/2020 Page 5 of 12 
Page 51



Approve with Conditions 12/11/2020 

Two/ single storey rear extension 

44 Meade Hill Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0DJ 
FUL App. Type: 65765 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Refused 11/11/2020 

Single storey extension at side and porch at front 

46 Sheepfoot Lane, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0DL 
FUL App. Type: 65865 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Refused 04/11/2020 

Two storey extension at side, single storey extensions at front and rear. Loft conversion with 

front and rear dormers. 

22 Winchester Avenue, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0LJ 
FUL App. Type: 65899 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Refused 13/11/2020 

Raise ridge height of roof with loft conversion, hip to gable roof extension and dormers at front 

and rear 

23 Hereford Drive, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0JA 
FUL App. Type: 65960 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 11/11/2020 

Single storey rear extension and porch at front 

119 Downham Crescent, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0BG 
FUL App. Type: 65979 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 10/11/2020 

Single storey extension at side 

7 Lancaster Drive, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0HZ 
FUL App. Type: 65980 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Lawful Development 19/11/2020 

Lawful development certificate for proposed 2 x hip-to-gable roof extension; 1 x rear dormer 

roof extension and proposed single storey side extension 

5 Holmfield Avenue, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0BH 
LDCP App. Type: 65987 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Prior Approval Not Required - Extension 11/11/2020 

Prior approval for single storey rear extension 

5 Holmfield Avenue, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0BH 
GPDE App. Type: 65988 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 19/11/2020 

Single storey extension at rear 

16 Newington Avenue, Prestwich, Manchester, M8 4LT 
FUL App. Type: 66005 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Prior Approval Required & Granted - Ext 10/11/2020 

Prior notification for proposed single storey rear extension 

4 Harrogate Avenue, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0LT 
GPDE App. Type: 66010 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

04/12/2020 Page 6 of 12 
Page 52



Approve with Conditions 20/11/2020 

Loft conversion with rear dormer 

6 Randlesham Street, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 1GY 
FUL App. Type: 66039 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 26/11/2020 

Single storey extension at side /rear; Porch at front 

6 Woodland Crescent, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9WQ 
FUL App. Type: 66040 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Prestwich - St Mary's Ward: 

Approve with Conditions 18/11/2020 

Demolition of existing garage and replacement with two storey side extension. Erection of new 

detached garage. Erection of boundary fencing. 

1 Grundy Avenue, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9TG 
FUL App. Type: 65665 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 02/11/2020 

Single storey extension at side 

162 St Anns Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9GJ 
FUL App. Type: 65917 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 12/11/2020 

Erection of detached garage in front garden 

1 Myrtle Bank, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9XX 
FUL App. Type: 65919 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 02/11/2020 

Proposed garden room / sunroom in rear garden 

32 Butt Hill Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9NJ 
FUL App. Type: 65924 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 04/11/2020 

Two storey extension at side/rear 

11 Sandy Meade, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9PR 
FUL App. Type: 65956 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 12/11/2020 

Variation of condition 02 (approved plans) of planning permission 64060 for change to external 

materials to light colour render; increase in front projection of the ground floor of the side 

extension and amendments to the design of the rear ground floor roof lights; removal of 

condition 03 of planning permission 64060 

4 Lynmouth Grove, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9TH 
FUL App. Type: 65985 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 03/12/2020 

New roof/roof extension with dormers at front and rear 

15 Butt Hill Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9NJ 
FUL App. Type: 66024 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

04/12/2020 Page 7 of 12 
Page 53



Approve with Conditions 27/11/2020 

Demolition of existing single storey rear outrigger and side garage and erection of single storey 

extension at rear and part single storey / part two storey extension at side. 

120 St Anns Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9GJ 
FUL App. Type: 66032 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Radcliffe - North Ward: 

Approve with Conditions 24/11/2020 

Single storey side/rear extension 

1 Old Oak Close, Radcliffe, Bolton, BL2 6SF 
FUL App. Type: 65868 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 05/11/2020 

Installation of external stairs/access at rear to existing first floor flat 

155 Ainsworth Road, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 4FD 
FUL App. Type: 65885 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 24/11/2020 

Erection of 2m fence in front garden 

14 Porchester Drive, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 3UU 
FUL App. Type: 65935 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 02/11/2020 

First floor side extension 

6 Kentsford Drive, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 3XX 
FUL App. Type: 65954 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Radcliffe - West Ward: 

Lawful Development 04/11/2020 

Lawful development certificate for proposed front porch extension 

40 Grosvenor Street, Bury, Manchester, BL9 9BJ 
LDCP App. Type: 65856 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Prior Approval Required and Granted 02/11/2020 

Prior notification for a proposed pre-fabricated hay barn 

Oakhill Barn Farm, Prestolee Road, Stoneclough, Radcliffe, Bolton, M26 1FJ 
AG App. Type: 65939 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 24/11/2020 

Single storey side extension 

52 Greendale Drive, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 1UQ 
FUL App. Type: 65973 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Ramsbottom + Tottington - Tottington Ward: 

Approve with Conditions 03/12/2020 

Rear dormer extension with raising of roof ridge; Front porch extension; Part render of 

property 

1 Portinscale Close, Bury, BL8 1DB 
FUL App. Type: 65932 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

04/12/2020 Page 8 of 12 
Page 54



Approve with Conditions 11/11/2020 

Widen existing garage and erection of first floor above 

22 Shipston Close, Bury, BL8 1QH 
FUL App. Type: 65936 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 19/11/2020 

4 no. internally illuminated fascia signs 

Site of Tottington Motor Co, Market Street, Tottington, Bury, BL8 3LS 
ADV App. Type: 65989 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 10/11/2020 

Proposed new garden outbuilding/gym with decked area. 

3 Turton Chase,Tottington, Bury, BL8 4FZ 
FUL App. Type: 66009 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Ramsbottom and Tottington - Ramsbottom Ward: 

Approve with Conditions 11/11/2020 

Retention of tack room and its proposed cladding/roofing. 

Riding For The Disabled Association, Moor Road, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL8 4NX 
FUL App. Type: 65533 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 18/11/2020 

Change of use of rear of building from hotel/public house (Class A4) to financial and 

professional services (Class A2) including changes to the external appearance, internal 

modifications and the creation of new car parking to the rear yard area. New bollards to 

existing parking spaces. 

The Grant Arms, 11 Market Place, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9AJ 
FUL App. Type: 65739 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 18/11/2020 

Listed building consent for change of use of rear of building from hotel/public house (Class A4) 

to financial and professional services (Class A2) including changes to the external appearance, 

internal modifications and the creation of new car parking to the rear yard area. New bollards 

to existing parking spaces. 

The Grant Arms, 11 Market Place, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9AJ 
LBC App. Type: 65740 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Prior Approval Required and Granted 10/11/2020 

Prior approval of proposed demolition of former mill buildings 

Britannia Soap Works, Kenyon Street, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 0AB 
DEM App. Type: 65909 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 11/11/2020 

First floor side extension and two storey extension at side/rear 

15 Chiltern Road, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9LF 
FUL App. Type: 65946 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 02/11/2020 

Change of use from tattoo studio to drinking establishment (Sui Generis) at ground floor with 

ancillary office accommodation to first floor 

1C Smithy Street, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9AT 
FUL App. Type: 65949 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

04/12/2020 Page 9 of 12 
Page 55



Approve with Conditions 27/11/2020 

Formation of 1 no. self-contained flat to first floor with installation of new access/entrance door 

and link bridge at rear 

28 Bolton Street, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9HX 
FUL App. Type: 65958 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Prior Approval Not Required - Extension 11/11/2020 

Prior approval for proposed single storey rear extension 

Grimecote Cottage, Rochdale Road, Ramsbottom, BL0 0RJ 
GPDE App. Type: 66030 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Whitefield + Unsworth - Besses Ward: 

Lawful Development 12/11/2020 

Lawful development certificate for proposed single storey side and rear extension 

19 Marston Close, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 8JR 
LDCP App. Type: 65983 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 03/12/2020 

Front porch extension; First floor side extension; Widening of driveway 

6 Dempsey Drive, Bury, BL9 8PE 
FUL App. Type: 66051 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Whitefield + Unsworth - Pilkington Park Ward: 

Prior Approval Not Required - Extension 05/11/2020 

Prior approval for proposed single storey rear extension 

33 Bury New Road, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7FL 
GPDE App. Type: 65777 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 24/11/2020 

Construction of a raised patio at front;  amendments to the front fenestration including new 

glazed openings to access the patio and relocation of a first floor window; single storey 

extension at rear and construction 1no. enclosed stairwell at rear. 

Whitefield House, 26 Church Lane, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7NF 
FUL App. Type: 65864 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 18/11/2020 

First floor extension at side and front porch extension; Alterations to car hardstanding at front 

16 Eight Acre, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7LW 
FUL App. Type: 65942 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 24/11/2020 

Two storey extension at side/rear and first floor extension at rear 

14 Rochford Avenue, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7PS 
FUL App. Type: 65951 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 11/11/2020 

Single storey extension at rear and decking; Dormer at side 

2 Old Hall Road, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7QW 
FUL App. Type: 65957 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

04/12/2020 Page 10 of 
 

Page 56



Approve with Conditions 05/11/2020 

Two storey extension at rear and new conservatory roof 

125 Higher Lane, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7WH 
FUL App. Type: 65962 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 11/11/2020 

Single storey extension at rear 

8 Westbourne Avenue, Whitefield,, Manchester, M45 7RY 
FUL App. Type: 65984 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 30/11/2020 

Demolition of existing rear extension and side garage and erection of new two storey front and 

side extension and part single storey / part two storey front extension 

7 Oakdale Close, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7LU 
FUL App. Type: 65997 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 19/11/2020 

Single storey extension at rear 

6 Hudswell Close, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7UD 
FUL App. Type: 66004 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Whitefield + Unsworth - Unsworth Ward: 

Approve with Conditions 11/11/2020 

Change of house type of approved dwelling on plot 4, approved under planning permission 

57530 resulting in the addition of a detached garage, with mezzanine and external dormer, 

and no pergola on the side. 

Brick House Farm, Griffe Lane, Bury, BL9 8QS 
FUL App. Type: 65720 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Raise No Objection 02/11/2020 

Article 18 consultation from Rochdale Council (ref. 20/01034/SCO) for proposed request for 

scoping opinion in respect of proposed development with ancilliary drive-thru unit and 

associated works 

South Heywood strategic urban extension 
CON App. Type: 65888 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 13/11/2020 

Single storey extension at side/rear, dormer at rear and addition of second floor window to 

side elevation 

22 Colinwood Close, Bury, BL9 8HQ 
FUL App. Type: 65944 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 05/11/2020 

Single storey extension at rear; Front porch and render/cladding to external elevations 

11 Castlebrook Close, Bury, BL9 8JE 
FUL App. Type: 65971 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Lawful Development 16/11/2020 

Lawful development certificate for proposed erection of dormer extension to rear roof 

40 Apollo Avenue, Bury, BL9 8HG 
LDCP App. Type: 65991 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

04/12/2020 Page 11 of 
 

Page 57



 

Lawful Development 19/11/2020 

Lawful development certificate for proposed single storey rear extension 

34 Apollo Avenue, Bury, BL9 8HG 
LDCP App. Type: 66008 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Prior Approval Required and Granted 26/11/2020 

The proposed installation of a 20m slim-line column supporting 6 no. antennas, 2 no. 

transmission dishes, a GPS Module and 3 no. Remote Radio Units (RRUs), with 2 no. 

equipment cabinets at the base and ancillary development thereto. 

Land at Manchester Road, Whitefield, Bury, BL9 9TD 
TEL App. Type: 66036 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 02/12/2020 

First floor extension at side; infill of ground floor front elevation; single storey extension at 

rear; all walls to be rendered 

27 Wilton Drive, Bury, BL9 8BG 
FUL App. Type: 66057 Application No.: 

Location: 

Proposal: 

 103  Total Number of Applications Decided: 

04/12/2020 Page 12 of 
 

Page 58



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
DECISION OF: 

 
PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE 

 
DATE: 

 
 15 December 2020 

 
SUBJECT: 

 
PLANNING APPEALS 

 
REPORT FROM: 

 
HEAD OF DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: 

 

DAVID MARNO 

  

 
TYPE OF DECISION: 

 
COUNCIL  
 

FREEDOM OF 

INFORMATION/STATUS: 
This paper is within the public domain 
 

 
SUMMARY: 

 
Planning Appeals:                       

- Lodged                     

- Determined                 

 

Enforcement Appeals 

- Lodged                        

- Determined                  

 
OPTIONS & 

RECOMMENDED OPTION 

 
The Committee is recommended to the note the report 

and appendices 

 
IMPLICATIONS: 

 

 
Corporate Aims/Policy 

Framework: 

 
Do the proposals accord with the Policy 

Framework?  Yes   
Statement by the S151 Officer: 
Financial Implications and Risk 

Considerations: 

 
Executive Director of Resources to advise 

regarding risk management 

 
Statement by Executive Director 

of Resources: 

 
N/A 
 

 
Equality/Diversity implications: 

 
No  

 

 
Considered by Monitoring Officer: 

 
N/A 
 

 

  

Agenda 

Item 

 

REPORT FOR NOTING 
6 

Page 59

Agenda Item 6



Wards Affected: All listed 

 
Scrutiny Interest: 
 

 

N/A 

 

TRACKING/PROCESS   DIRECTOR: 

 

Chief Executive/ 

Strategic Leadership 

Team 

Executive 

Member/Chair 
Ward Members Partners 

 

 

   

Scrutiny Committee Committee Council  

 

 

   

    

 

1.0 BACKGROUND 

 

This is a monthly report to the Committee of the Planning Appeals lodged against 

decisions of the authority and against Enforcement Notices served and those that 

have been subsequently determined by the Planning Inspectorate.  

 

Attached to the report are the Inspectors Decisions and a verbal report will be 

presented to the Committee on the implications of the decisions on the Appeals that 

were upheld. 

 

2.0 CONCLUSION  

 

That the item be noted. 

 

 

List of Background Papers:-  

 

Contact Details:- 

David Marno, Head of Development Management 

Planning Services, Department for Resources and Regulation, 

3 Knowsley Place ,Bury     BL9 0EJ 

Tel: 0161 253 5291  

Email: d.marno@bury.gov.uk 

Page 60



 

Planning Appeals Lodged  
 between 02/11/2020 and 06/12/2020 

Proposal 

1 Clyde Terrace, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 4PL Location 

Proposal A -  Dropped kerb and creation of parking space. 
Proposal B - Single storey front/side extension. 

Applicant: 

Appeal lodged: 03/12/2020  

Mr B Coleman & Miss J Madden 

Decision level: DEL 

Recommended Decision: Split Decision 
Appeal Type: Written Representations 

Application No.: 65741/FUL 

Total Number of Appeals Lodged: 1 

Page 61



 
Planning Appeals Decided  

 between 02/11/2020 and 06/12/2020 

Proposal: 

41 Arthur Lane, Ainsworth, Bolton, BL2 5PR Location: 

Conversion of stable to dwelling with single storey extension 

Applicant: 

Date: 27/11/2020 

Mr Spillard 

Decision level: DEL 

Recommended Decision: Refuse Appeal type: Written Representations 

Application No.: 65562/FUL Appeal Decision: Dismissed 

Page 62



  

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate 

 
 

Appeal Decision  

Site Visit made on 16 October 2020  
by R Morgan BSc (Hons) MCD MRTPI  

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State  

Decision date: 27th November 2020 

 

Appeal Ref: APP/T4210/W/20/3258314 
41 Arthur Lane, Ainsworth, Bolton BL2 5PR 

 
· The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

against a refusal to grant planning permission. 

· The appeal is made by Mr Gary Spillard against the decision of Bury Metropolitan 

Borough Council. 
· The application Ref 65562, dated 24 May 2020, was refused by notice dated 23 July 

2020. 
· The development proposed is the conversion of stable to dwelling with extension. 

 

Decision 

 

1. The appeal is dismissed 

Main Issue 

2. The site is within the Green Belt and so the main issues are: 

i) whether the proposal would be inappropriate development in the Green 

Belt, including the effect on openness, having regard to the National 

Planning Policy Framework and relevant development plan policies; and 

ii) whether the proposal would provide a safe and suitable access. 

Reasons 

 

Whether the proposal would be inappropriate development in the Green Belt 
 

3. The appeal proposal would involve the conversion and extension of an existing 

block of three stables, to form a single storey dwelling with garden area and 

space for parking.   The site is one of a number of properties which front onto 

Arthur Lane, in a rural location outside the village of Ainsworth.  

4. The site is within the Green Belt, where inappropriate development is 

restricted in order to prevent urban sprawl and keep land permanently open.  
Paragraph 146 of the National Planning Policy Framework (the Framework) 

identifies certain forms of development that are not inappropriate in the 

Green Belt, provided that they preserve its openness and do not conflict with 
the purposes of including land within it.  These include the re-use of buildings, 

where they are of permanent and substantial construction.  Saved Policy 

OL1/4 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan 1997 (UDP) is consistent with 

this guidance.  

Page 63



Appeal Decision APP/T4210/W/20/3258314

 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          2 

5. In this case, the stable building is of permanent and substantial construction 

and could be converted without the need for major reconstruction.  The site is 

surrounded by fencing, with an area surfaced with wood chippings at the front 
of the building.  To the side is a metal shipping container.  The proposed 

conversion and the creation of a domestic garden would change the 

appearance of the site, but the building and boundary fencing are already 

there, and the proposal would not cause harm to the openness of the Green 

Belt. 

6. Framework paragraph 145 states that the extension or alteration of a building 

in the Green Belt would not be inappropriate development, provided that this 
does not result in disproportionate additions over and above the original 

building.   Saved UDP Policy OL1/2 allows for limited extension, alteration or 

replacement of existing dwellings, but this is not fully compliant with more 
recent guidance in the Framework, which provides for extensions to buildings.  

I have therefore used the Framework wording instead. 

7. The planning officer’s report suggests that the extension would result in an 

increase in volume of approximately one third.  The size of the extension 
would be acceptable and would not represent a disproportionate addition over 

and above the existing building.  

8. The proposal would not, therefore, constitute inappropriate development in 
the Green Belt.  It would be consistent with the provisions of Framework 

paragraphs 145 and 146.  It would also comply with the first three bullet 

points of Saved UDP Policy OL1/4 relating to the conversion and extension of 

buildings in the Green Belt.   

Whether a safe and suitable access would be provided 

 

9. Arthur Lane is an unadopted, no-through road which is accessed directly from 
the B6196.  A number of properties are served by Arthur Lane, and whilst the 

lane is reasonably wide at the junction, visibility is poor, particularly for 

vehicles attempting to turn right onto the B6196.  This is due in part to the 
location of the access close to a bend in the main road, but the situation is 

made considerably worse by the presence of a high conifer hedge immediately 

adjacent to the carriageway, which forms the boundary of 37 Arthur Lane  

(No 37).  This hedge presents a solid feature which significantly limits visibility 

to the north. 

10. The substandard nature of the access onto the B6196, caused by the poor 

visibility, is not a matter of dispute.  From my own observations during my 
site visit, I found turning right out of Arthur Lane to be hazardous, and I did 

not attempt it.  Visibility towards the south is much better, and making a left 

turn out of Arthur Lane is easier, but for larger vehicles the lack of visibility 
towards the north is still likely to cause difficulties, especially since the B6196 

is not particularly wide in this location.  I note that residents have installed a 

mirror opposite the junction to assist with visibility, but this provides only a 

partial improvement.  

11. Reference has been made to three serious car crashes in the vicinity in the 

last ten years, although it is not clear whether they were linked to the poor 

visibility at the Arthur Lane junction.  

Page 64



Appeal Decision APP/T4210/W/20/3258314

 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          3 

12. The situation would be improved for all users of the access if the height of the 

hedge at No 37 were to be significantly reduced, but the hedge is in private 

ownership and is outside of the appellant’s control.  The Council has explained 

that it is unable to take enforcement action in relation to the hedge. 

13. The proposed conversion would generate traffic movements, both during 

building works and occupation of the dwelling.  The proposed house would be 

small and associated traffic levels likely to be low.  However, there would be 
additional daily traffic movements which, due to the poor visibility at the 

access, would add to the potential for conflicts with vehicles travelling along 

the main road, with associated risks for highway safety.  Options for journeys 
by modes of transport other than the car are limited in this location, and the 

limited visibility, traffic speeds and narrow pavements along the B6196 mean 

that walking and cycling are unlikely to be attractive alternatives. 

14. I acknowledge that the lack of planning controls means that the existing use 

of the site is not restricted, but the Council and local residents have confirmed 

that the stables have historically been used by the owners of 41 Arthur Lane, 

which is located immediately opposite the appeal site.  As such, users would 
not need to travel to the site.  It is therefore likely that any traffic movements 

associated with the use, above and beyond occasional deliveries of feed and 

bedding, would be limited.   

15. I note the appellant’s comments that the stables are currently used by other 

people who do not live at 41 Arthur Lane, and that this involves two or three 

vehicles visiting the site each day.  However, I have been provided with no 

further evidence to support the appellant’s case, such as information about 
any formal arrangements which may be in place with users of the stables, or 

detailed evidence of regular daily movements of traffic to and from the site.   

16. In the absence such information, an existing level of use of the site, over and 
above an incidental use associated with 41 Arthur Lane, has not been clearly 

demonstrated.  I am therefore unable to conclude that the proposal would not 

result in an intensification of the existing use, with associated unacceptable 

harm to highway safety. 

17. Reference has been made to other rural buildings in the vicinity, including 

stables, being converted to housing.  However, I am unaware of the details of 

these cases, or the circumstances surrounding any approvals that may have 

been granted. 

18. I note comments that the proposed conversion of the stables would mean less 

horses using the junction to access local bridleways, reducing the risk of 
accidents involving horses.  However, from the evidence provided it is unclear 

whether horses stabled on Arthur Lane do regularly use this access, or 

whether other options are available to access local bridleways.  No specific 
concerns have been raised about safety issues at the junction caused by 

horses, so the extent to which this is an existing problem is unclear.  

19. I conclude that the proposal would not provide a safe and suitable access.  It 

would conflict with the fifth bullet point of Saved UDP Policy OL1/4 which 
requires that suitable access and likely traffic generation can be 

accommodated without creating a traffic hazard.  There is further conflict with 

Page 65



Appeal Decision APP/T4210/W/20/3258314

 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          4 

the detailed guidance in the Conversion and Re-use of Buildings in the Green 

Belt Supplementary Planning Document 2007, which in paragraph 4.9 

requires consideration of the suitability of a proposed use in relation to the 
impact on the environment, including traffic generation and access 

arrangements.    

20. The Council’s second reason for refusal relates to concerns about the ability of 

the proposal to secure appropriate access to the adopted highway.  The 
proposal would make use of the existing access onto Arthur Lane, which is 

adequate.  The submitted site plan does not include the access road within 

the red line boundary, but it is clear from the plans and from my site visit that 
there is existing and adequate vehicular access from the site to Arthur Lane.  

Although Arthur Lane is unadopted, there is no suggestion that it would not 

continue to be available as an access to the appeal site, or to the other 

properties which it serves.   

21. In terms of the adequacy of the access arrangements within the site itself, the 

submitted drawing is diagrammatic but shows space for parking and 

manoeuvring of vehicles within the curtilage.  I am therefore satisfied that the 
proposal would provide adequate access both within the curtilage of the site 

and, between the site and the adopted highway.  

22. The Council has referred to Saved UDP Policy H2/2 in its decision notice, 
which refers to the layout of new residential development.  However, in this 

case the layout of the site itself is acceptable with regards to car parking and 

access, so the proposal does not conflict with this policy.   

Conclusion  

23. I have found that the proposal would not be inappropriate development in the 

Green Belt. However, insufficient information has been provided to clearly 

demonstrate that the proposal would not result an intensification of the 
existing use, with associated risks to highway safety resulting from increased 

use of the substandard access at the junction of Arthur Lane and the B6196.  

This is a significant concern, which outweighs the lack of harm to the Green 

Belt. 

24. Material considerations do not indicate that I should conclude other than in 

accordance with the development plan as a whole.   I therefore conclude that 

the appeal be dismissed. 
 

 

R Morgan    

INSPECTOR 

Page 66


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 10th November 2020
	Minutes

	4 PLANNING APPLICATIONS
	part one.pdf
	final index.pdf
	final report.pdf
	65015 viewpoints.pdf
	Photos.pdf
	SPR3391120120711200_0001.pdf
	SPR3391120120711200_0002.pdf
	SPR3391120120711200_0003.pdf
	SPR3391120120711200_0004.pdf
	SPR3391120120711200_0005.pdf
	SPR3391120120711200_0006.pdf
	SPR3391120120711200_0007.pdf
	final report.pdf

	66066 viewpoints.pdf
	Photos.pdf
	Plan 1.pdf�
	Sheets and Views
	A3L-01



	5 DELEGATED DECISIONS
	6 PLANNING APPEALS

